EARLY LYME REGIS

The pattern of human settlement in and around Lyme Regis has been shaped
by rising sea levels and unstable cliffs. The seashore would once have been
much further out; many early prehistoric settlements may have been lost to

the sea.

Bronze Age burial mounds (barrows) have been found at Shapw1ck
Common, Hardown Hill and Charmouth. They would have been assocmted

with farming commumtles.

Iron Age hill forts are nearby at Lambert’s Castle, Coney’s Castle, Musbury
Castle and Hawkesdown. The small settlement of round huts made of wood
and thatch at Holcombe was founded probably towards the end of the first
century BC, and continued to be inhabited up to the Roman invasion of
AD43. The people who lived here were farmers. A bronze mirror was their

finest possession; a replica is displayed in this showcase.

The first Roman building, also timber but rectangular, was built at Holcombe
around AD100, after a period when the site had been deserted. This was
replaced by buildings with stone foundations around AD 17

5. The villa gradually grew larger, adding a bathhouse. It reached its full
extent around AD 350. It was later abandoned.

Very little is known about the British in this area in the early Anglo-Saxon
period after Roman rule had ended around AD 410. After AD 600 West
Saxon rulers gradually took over. Displayed in the showcase are Saxon finds,
probably from a burial, found on Hardown Hill, Morecombelake.

The first mention of Lyme Regis comes in a charter of AD 774, when land on
the west bank of the River Lim was granted to Sherborne Abbey.

Further information on this display can be found in a booklet in the adjoining wall hopper.




Two Roman oil lamps, thought to be
from the Holcombe villa. They are made of fine
pottery, with a central hole to fill them with oil,
and a spout to take the wick. One has a handle
for carrying. »

Roman coins found in Lyme Regis and
the area around. No Roman sites are known,
except the Holcombe villa. All are the type and
date of coin likely to be found in Britain, except
the earliest, the dupondius of Augustus, and the
Egyptian tetradrachma. Augustus ruled the
Roman Empire 30 years before the invasion of
Britain, 50 it is possible that the coin arrived here
with the Roman soldiers in AD 43. The
tetradrachma of Claudius II is more likely to be a
later collectorts loss because no such coin has
been found by excavation in Britain, so that it
seems t_hey were not in use here in Roman times.

The find spots of most of these coins is
simply the Lyme area, but the coin of Augustus

was found in Lyme Chlirchya'rd during the

renovations of 1885; the Postumus was found at
Horn Cottage in 1937; and the Claudius II was
found near Bridport in 1939.

Dupondius of Augustus (27 BC-AD 14{),
Denarius of Trajan (AD 98-117)

Denarius of Faustina I (AD 141-165)

both given by Rev G F Eyres.

Denarius of Severus Alexander (AD 222-235)
given by Rev G F Eyres.

Radiate of Postumus (AD 260-268)

given by Tom Stoward.

Tetradrachma of Claudius II, minted in
Alexandria (AD 268-270) given by P C Cross.
Siliqua of Valens, found locally
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LYME’S SHIPS

It is difficult to know exactly how many ships used Lyme,
or were based here. In 1326 the Bailiffs of the town were
ordered to send all ships of more than fifty tuns to
Portsmouth to form the navy (the usual way of forming a
sca force in mediaeval times) to fight or frighten off the
French, Lyme provided five ships - La Blythe; LaWelyfare;
La Mighel and apparently two called Le Saintemaricogge.
The five owners went with them, and 1 54 other mariners.
Lyme must have been a flourishing port to supply so many
large ships and sailors.

When the Cobb was beaten down in the storm of
November 1377 ‘fifteen large and great ships and forty boats’,
twenty of which were used for fishing, were destroyed
along with it. The numbers give a good indication of the
ships and boats using the Cobb - the larger ones were
merchant vessels.

Our Lad)/ QfL)/me -
SHIP' CHARTER OF 1322

“cogue Nostre Dame de Lim deWauter Gifard mastre’is named
in what is perhaps the oldest surviving ship charter in all
North Eurapean history.

The Our Lady (also called the St Mary) was a typical flat-
bottomed trading vessel of the 1200-1400 period. Such a
ship is the central feature of our first town-seal, of about
1284. The agreement was made in French at Bordeaux
(then English), and concerns a cargo of wine and flour,
valued at £53.11,0, which the owner-master, Walter
Giflard, promiscs to discharge at Newcastle-on-Tyne
within fifteen days [rom sailing Fe left on 23 May, 1322.

The yoyage was successful, for safe receipt is endorsed on
the back, althoughit is noted that 16 tuns of wine are
lacking, Lyme had been engaged in the wine trade since at
Ieast 1260, In the carly days the town’s enemies at sea
were not all foreigners. The men of Dartmouth resented
this mercantile upstart from Dorset, and there was such
bad blood between the two ports that in 1265 Henry m
himselfhad to intervene,

St Andrew's Wel

Broad Street Bridge

Possible Forme
Settlement

SAXON
BOUNDARY

The boundary to the west of the town is the
county boundary between Devon and
Dorset, and is given in a Saxon land charter

Cobb

of 938, which describes the boundaries of
Uplyme. Some of the names are similar to
those of today - the River Lym for example.
Devonshire Hedge, the current boundary, is not mentioned.
The coastline was much further out then, which is why
Sigilmere has disappeared.

St Andrew’s Well is a spring, not a well.
It probably had a small chapel in mediaeval times.

THE COBB

Somewhere about 12 50 documents start to describe Lyme asa
port - for example in 1254 Henry o1 was assembling a fleet at
Portsmouth and included Lyme in the list of ports which were
to send all ships capable of carrying sixteen horses. Lyme could
not have become a port without the Cobb, its artificial harbour,
so the Cobb must have been built at around this time.

Quite why Lyme decided to build such a costly structure we do
not know. It has been suggested that the river mouth at
Axmouth, just to the west, became blocked at this time,
preventing ships from using the wide river there, and that
Lyme’s Cobb was built to take its place. Certainly a refuge for
ships was badly needed on this treacherous coastline, since there
is no other harbour between Weymouth on the east and the Exe
on the west. The Cobb may also have been designed to protect
the town from erosion by the sea.

The Cobb made sea-borne trade possible, and the little
settlement soon grew into a town. In 1284 Edward 1 gaveita
Royal Charter, and Lyme became a borough. It also added Regis
to its name to commemorate its royal connection.

The town was half a mile from the Cobb, and all goods
unloaded at the Cobb had to be carried on horseback to Cobb
Gate, at the bottom of Broad Street, where duties were paid.
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Inx Elizabethan times the Cobb was called * a great end costly jeay’
(Holinshed), a description which nieatly summarises most early
visitors” reactions. The Cobb was a xmrzde of early engineering,
somsthing which had to be expensive.

A report for Si Fm&“almghmm 1586 remarked on its
position, detached in the sea, and the construction ‘with great
tymber trees and rocks”. It cost 2 gaod deal to maintain, but the
revenue it vielded made it a good investment.

In the 16205 Thomas Gerard described how the stones were
carried to the Cobb buoyed up by empty casks. Roger North, who
¥isited in the 1670s or Sos, described this in more detail: the large =
foundation stones for Tepairs. were searched out at Culverhole, five
miles along the coast ‘and mounting them upon casks chained together,

with ene man mounted upon them, be with the kelp of @ pole conduces i
to the place where it is to le,

and&&enszrz&mgmmmpnamcc
the casks, and the stone > falls imea irs place”.

North cerwinly visited the Cobb, andhedesmbesnasbemg @
immense. mass of stone..no cne stone that lies there was ever mudma'u‘mh
a twol, or is bedded in azy sort of cement; but all being pebbles of the sea,
are piled up and hold By their bearings [ie weight] only, and the surge
[of the sea] plays in and our through the interstices of the stone in a

wonderful manner.” Clearly by this time the Cobb was built mosdy
of stone, rather than timber and stone as it had been eatlier.
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LYME REGIS
INTHE 16th CENTURY

John Leland visited in the 15305 or 15205, 2nd described Lyme a5
‘c prozy marie town sex in the rootss of an high robky Bill down 1o the.
herd shase. This zomra hach good shappes. end ech fishing cnd
merchaumtice. Ther commeh & shaloer brooke froes the billes cPorn 3 mifles
narth, and cummith fleting ca great stone thoarsegh a stoce bridge in the
bottom. .. Ther &5 po hoven az Lime: bex o quarter of a mile west sowth west
of the sown is @ greot and | ] in the 520 for sacour of shippes”.

Leland probzbly had difhculty in finding the right word for the
Cobb because there is no exact word for 2 detached harbour, sez in
the sca. He also mentioned that merchents from Brittany were
often found i the town.
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Four 16th century German jettons from Lyme. They are quite
common finds in England









